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Inciependent Auditors Report

To the Members of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statemen}s of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited {the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including
cther comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financizl statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whoie, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Going Concern

See Note 41 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The financiai statements of the Company have | Our audit procedures included:

been prepared on a going concern basis. *  Enquired with the management and those
charged with governance regarding the
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

The Company has a negative net worth of INR
1.031.62 million as at 31 March 2023 and has
incurred a net loss of INR 45.90 million during
the year ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March
2023, the Company’s current liabilities exceed
its current assets by INR 788.85 million.
Further, the Company has contractual cash
oufflows of INR 1,034.27 million (excluding
future contractual interest payments) due
within 12 months of the balance sheet date,

The Company has prepared budgets / cash
flow forecasts, which involve judgements and
estimation around the sources of funds to meet
the financial obligations and cash flow
requirements.

Based on the projected future cash flows, the
Company expects to meet its future cash flow
requirements from:

* Expected increase in cash flow from
operations.

*  Availability of unrestricted cash and bank
balances and undrawn credit facilities.

* Financial and operational support by
SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company).

In view of the above, the management and the
Board of Directors believe that the Company
will be able to meet all its contractual
obiigations and liabilities as and when they fall
due in near future.

Considering the subjectivity involved in the
assessment performed by the management
and board of directors of the Company, we
have identified the assessment of going
concern assumption as a key audit matter,

* Assessed the appropriateness and

* Compared the forecasted staternent of profit and

* Evaluated the reasonableness of the

+  Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts

* Assessed the adequacy of disclosurés in the

Company's ability to meet their obligations for
the next 12 months.

reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts for
the next 12 months.

loss and cash flows with the Company's
business plans approved by the board of
directors of the Holding Company.

assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate etc. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

financial statements relating to uncertainties and
mitigation thereof.

Impairment assessment of Property, Plant

and Equipment, Right of Use Assets and
Other Intangible Assets

See Note 53 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of

Our audit procedures included:
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Property Plant and Equipment, Right of Use
Assets and Other Intangible Assets amounts to
INR 2,405.92 million.

The Company periodically assess whether
there is any indication that such Property Plant
and Equipment, Right of Use Assets and Other
Intangible Assets at cash generating unit
(CGU}) level may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of these assets and if the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced fo its
recoverable amount. That reduction is recorded
as impairment loss.

To assess the recoverability of the CGU,
management is required to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to forecast
of future revenue, operating margins, exit
multiple and selection of the discount rates. The
Company used the discounted cash flow
approach to determine the recoverabie value of
the CGU. These assumptions are of particular
importance due to the extent of judgment
involved, thus changes in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable value of the CGU.

Considering the inherent  uncertainty,
complexity and  judgement involved,
impairment assessment of the above-
mentioned assets has been considered as a
key audit matter.

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
process for projecting the future cash flows for
determining the recoverable amount of CGU.

Tested the appropriateness of management's
basis to identify relevant CGUs for which
impairment testing is performed.

Tested the design, Iimplementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
impairment assessment process.

Evaluated the key market related assumptions
such as discount rate and exit multiple.

Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow foregasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate. To consider forecasting risk we also
perfformed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

Assessed the appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

See Note 2.11 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged as a hotel
owner. [ts revenue comprises hotel revenue
(including room revenue, food and beverage
revenue and recreation and other services
revenue) and property management and space
rental revenue.

The accounting policies for different revenue
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included:

Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies and its compliance with the
relevant accounting standard.

Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key contrals of the revenue
recognifion process.

Performed substantive testing (including year-
end cut off testing) by selecting samples of
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

revenue transactions recorded during the year.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the For such samples, verified the underlying

Company and there is risk of overstatement of documents such as invoices, receipts etc.

revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure o | i .

achieve targets and eamings expectations. Tested the adequacy Of d'SCI.o sures relating .to
the revenue recognition in the financial
statements.

Considering the above, we have identified
revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance congclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially’ misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsihilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audior’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
Page 4 of 16
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels {(Ahmedabad) Private Limited

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* _ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Ve also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of [ndia in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A, As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-up of certain softwares
{ applications which form part of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers in
electronic mode’ has not been kept on the servers physically located in India. Further, in respect
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

of certain softwares / applications, we are unable to comment on whether the back-up of the
books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has been kept on
servers physically located in India on a daily basis due to lack of availability of sufficient
information/ evidence.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph in “Annexure 8" with respect
to adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 18 April 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financiat
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the .explanations given to us;

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Uitimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 47(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have heen received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i} and (ii) above,
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

contain any material misstatement.
e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon

by us.
ForBSR& Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s Registration No.:101248W/MW-100022

/g\;g:a Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508822
Date: 17 August 2023 [CAI UDIN:23500822BGWIUJ8318

Page 7 of 16




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative

(B
() (b)

©

(d)

()

(ii) (a)

(b)

(i)

(iv)

)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deed of immovable property {other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements is held in the name of the Company.
However, original title deed of land is under lien with the financial institution for the foan facilities
availed by the Company. Therefore, we could not verify that title deed and has not received
independent confirmation from financial institution.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
({including Right of Use assets) or intangible Assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ji)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iil)(a) to 3(ii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3{iv} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
Page 8 of 16
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

(vi)

{vii) (a)

the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Govemment has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
rendered by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have Hability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance and
Professional Tax. Further in respect of Income-Tax, the Company has been irregular in
deposifing the sum due for 6 months and the amount involved is Rs. 21.89 millions.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable, except as mentioned below:

Date of
payment

Period to Due date
which the
amount

relates

Amount
{Rs. in
millions)

Nature of
the dues

Name of the
statute

16 April | Not yet paid

2019

Provident 0.27 | March 2019

Fund

The
Employees’
Provident
Fund and
Miscellaneou
s Provisions
Act, 1952

Central

Goods and
Services Tax
Act, 2017 and
State Goods
and Services
Tax Act, 2017

Interest

liability on
Goods and
Services Tax

0.30

December
2017 o
August 2021

Not yet paid

Telangana
State
industrial
Infrastucture
Corporation
Ltd

Property tax

2.24

FY 2021-22

30  April
2021

Not yet paid

\&
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2023 (Continued)

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Due date Date of

' statute the dues (Rs. in which the payment

millions) amount
relates

Telangana interest 0.27 | FY 2021-22 26 April | Not yet paid
State liability on 2022
Industrial Property Tax
Infrastucture
Corporation
Lid
Telangana Property tax 2.24 | FY 2022-23 26  April | Not yet paid
State 2022
Industrial
Infrastucture '
Corporation
Lid
Telangana Interest 0.81 | FY 2022-23 26  April | Not yet paid
State liability  on 2022
Industrial Property Tax
Infrastucture
Corporation
Ltd

# These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the previous and current year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where dispute
statute the dues {Rs. in which the is pending
millions) amount
relates
Central Goods Penalty on 26,50 | April 2020 to Commissioner (Appeals-
and Services delay in December [y Customs, Central Tax,
Tax Act, 2017 deposit of 2020 (except Hyderabad
GST July 2020}

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the

Income Tax Act, 1861 as income during the year.

(ix) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. As at 31 March 2023, the
Company also has interest free loan amounting to Rs. 392.89 millions from the holding

5
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(@

(e)

M

x) (@)

(b)

(xi) (@)

(b)

(0)

(xii)

(i)

(xiv} (a)

(b)

(o)

company, repayable at the option of the Company and accordingly classified as "Other equity”.
As this loan is repayabie at the option of the Company, there has been no default in repayment
thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x}(a) of the Qrder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and expianations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not enfered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors

Page 11 of 16
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

(xvi) (a)

)

(©)

(d)

{xvii}

(xviii)

(xix)

()

and hance, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the reguiations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the QOrder is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but has incurred cash
losses of Rs. 382.04 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2023. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2023

by Rs. 788.85 millions.

Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concermn assumption and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going
concern i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its
assets, for the foreseeabie future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that ail liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the

*
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(x)(a) and 3(oq(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

}Z}I Sﬁ Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23509822BGWIUJ8318
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHL Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMHI Hotels
(Ahmedabad) Private Limited {‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controis with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Nete”) and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion”
section of our report below, on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March
2023.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported below in determining the nature,

timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2023 financial statements of the Company,
and this material weakness does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness haves been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2029,

The Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated Information Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company’s Opera Application software were not operating effectively as at 31 March
2023. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenue from operations.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Page 14 of 16 _.



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and ptan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate interal financial controls with reference fo financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonabie assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of

%
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ﬂg::::a Kumar

- Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23509822BGWIUJ8318
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SAMMI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Al amounss in Rupees Milfions, unlese otherwise stared)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,299.19 2.862.32
FRight to use asset 3 103,40 105,58
Investrent property 3 146.08 149.16
Other Intangible assets 4 333 7.59
Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 19.34 30.58
Other tax assets (net) 6 3040 2001
Other non-current agsets 4 4,08 283
Total non-current assets 260632 3,178.07
Current assets
Inventories 9 631 428
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 112,39 69.94
Cash and cash equivalents 11 o5.26 105.60
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 11 5949 =
Leans b - 134 66
Orther financial assets 12 16.77 15.18
Other current assets 13 27.81 531.56
Total corrent assets 318.03 387.22
TOTAL ASSETS 2.924.35 3,565,29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capiral 14 21.65 21.65
Other equity 15 (1,053.27) {1,007.37)
Total equity {1.031.62) {985.72)
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabititia:
Borrowings 16 2.738.69 347829
Lease liabilities 17 £.84 8.6l
Trede payables 16a
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enrerprises; and - =
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.60 -
Other tinancial liabilites 18 4099 34.84
Provisions 12 1.64 250
Other non-current liabilities 20 54.33 59.97
‘Total non- current liabilifies 2,849.0¢ 3,584.21
Current lisbilities
Financial Wabilities
Borrowings 21 197.74 £685.86
Lease liabilities 23 0.79 079
Trade payables 2
- total cutstanding dues of micro emerprises and small enterprises, and 785 376
- total eutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18110 19298
COthers financial liabilities 24 646.79 3453
Other current liabilities 25 7145 43.26
Provisions 26 1.16 1.62
Total current liabilities 1,106.88 966,30
Total liabilities 3,955,97 4,551.01
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,924.38 3,565.29

The notes from Note | to Note 53 form an indegral part of these financial stacements.
As per our report of even dale attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accounttants
ICAl Firm Repgistranion Mo 101 248W/W-100022

Ahwetn Kumar
Partimer

Membership No,: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Dare: 17 August 2023

DIN: 06813081

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 Aogust 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Gyapa
Hirecior

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Drate: 17 August 2023



SAMUI Hotels {Ahmedebad) Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{4l amorinis in Rupees Miflions, unfess otherwise stated)

Mote

Continning Operations
Revenus from operations 27
Qther income 28
Total income
Expenses
Cost of matenals consmed 29
Employee benefits expense 30
Other expenses Kk}
Total expense
Earnlngs from confinwing operations before finance costs,
depreciation and amortisation and tax
Finance costs 31
Depreciation and isation expense 32
Loss from continuing operations before tax
Tax expense 7

Current tax

Deferred tax

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Discentinued Qperations

Profit{{L.oss} from discontinued operations before tax 50
Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profiti{Loss) for the year {rom discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Other prehensive (loss)i

frems thar will ot be reclassified 1o profit vr foss

- Re-measurement {loss)gain on defined benefit obligations
- Income tax relating to ftems menbionad above

Other hensive (boss)/i net of tax

P

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Earnings/{loss) per equity share from continuing operations 34
Face value of [NR 10 each

Basic (INR}

Diluted (INR}

Earnings/{loss) per equity share from discontinued operations 34
Face value of INR 10 each

Basic {[NR)

Diluted (INR)

Earningsf{loss) per equity share from continuing and di
operations 34
Face value of INR. 10 each

Basic (INR}

Drituted (IMR}

The notes from Note 1 10 Note 53 form an mtegral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

[CAl Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

5

N

‘eta Kumar
Partner Nreetor
Membership No.: 500822 DIN: 06813081
Flace; Gurugram Place: Gurugram

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Represented)
(refer note 50)
1,057.31 481 32
2670 1318
1,084,01 495,00
2347 5435
113 65 8051
43470 23480
641.82 369.66
442,19 13534
50821 46747
150,89 156,15
659,10 623.62
(216.91) {498.18)
(216.91) (498.28)
17131 (72.02)
17131 {7202}
{45600 {570.30)
(030) 035
{0:30) 0.35
4530 56995
(10,02 {23.02)
(10.02) (23.02)
Ry (333}
79 (3.33)
{211) (26.35)
(211) (26.35)

Gyafa
Director
DIN: 03563467

Place; Curogram

Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023 Diate: 17 August 2023
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SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al aponnis in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Lass from continuing eperations before tax
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amortisation of income received in advance
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net}
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (net}
Reversal of impairment losses of property, plant, and equipment and other intangible assets
Rental income
Loss allowance for trade receivables
Finance costs
Lease Income
Gain on modification of financial liabilities
Interest income
Unwinding of discount on security deposit
Government grant written off

Operating proflt before movement in assets and labllities
{Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease in other financial assets
Decreasef(increase) in other assets
(Decrease Yincrease in trade payables
Increasef(decrease) in other liabilities
(Decrease Mfincrease in provisions
Increasef(decrease) in other financial liabilities

Cash generated by operating activities
[ncome taxes paid (net}

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Disposal of discontinued operations, net of expenses
Loan received/{paid} from/to holding company
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits
Bank deposits made
[nterest received

Net cash generated from/A(used in) investing activities (B}

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Repayment of current borrowings (net)
Finance costs paid
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the cnd of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Represented)
{refer note 50}
(216.91) (498.23)
[71.31 (72.02)
165.53 172.30
{3.20) (3.20}
5.09 333
(12201} -
(87.47) -
{3.81) {3.69)
595 019
57542 536.78
(1.30) (2.29)
(14.30} -
{7.39) (3.80)
{0.20) {0.20)
- 0.71
466.71 130.38
(2.03) 125
(48.41} (2.28)
1617 e.11
25.06 {21.87)
(4.33) 26.59
29.56 (30.37)
{1.62) 022
[7.75 (6.66)
492,86 106,37
(7.50) {11.91)
485.36 94.46
(17.69) {3.53)
633.10 -
134.66 {13226)
986.27 360,96
(1,044.94) (361.00)
583 1.40
697.27 (136.43)
588.18 77796
(1,308.27) (205.34)
(37.98) (64.12)
{437.10) (413.37)
(C.80) (0.72)
(1,196.97) 89.41
(14.34) 47.44
109,60 62.16
95.26 109.60

%y -
-




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated}

i, Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

- in current accounts
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

Cash on hand

ii. Movement in financial liabilities - Borrowings including accrued interest

Opening Balance

Changes from financing cash flows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Repayment of current borrowings (net)
Finance costs paid

Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense

Closing Balance

iit. For movement in lease liabilities, refer note 43,

AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows",
The notes from Note 1 to Note 53 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
63.93 105.27
30.33 4.01
1.00 0.32
95.26 10%.60

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4,192.42 3,570.02
588.18 77796
(1,309.27) (205.34)
(37.98) (64.12)
(437.10) (418.37)
55992 53227
3.556.17 4.192.42

iv. Cash Flows from operating activities section in statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountanis SAMHI Hotels (Abmedabad) Private Limited

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022
Q&“”uﬁ: /; b é
/9/ ______.,-—r-zm T

weta Kumar
Partner — ' Director
Membership No.; 509822 DIN: 06813081
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023

DIN: 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India. The
Company was incorporated in India on 1 February 2003 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and

is limited by shares.

The Company is a privately held hotel development and investment company with focus on operating
internationally branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has one hotel under it (Sheraton; Hyderabad) which is operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors on 17 August 2023.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basis

Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments

Also refer note 41 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about
the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying
value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

% Co
A
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SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, uniess otherwise stated)

i)

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements:
Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Leases

Critical judgements in determining the lease period:

Ind AS 116 required lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company
makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it
is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the undetiying asset
to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in the future possible periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances.

Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated

or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics,

i) Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible

v)

assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows,
obsolescence, demand, competition, known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives
and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting

date.

Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations {gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates,
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
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risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Also, refer note 38 for further disclosures.

vi) Recognition of Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

E. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified

as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
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with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Holding

Company’s Chief Financial Officer,

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 38.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

@
© Gurugram r_;
&

+



SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major compoenents) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or

loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). Further, leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of lease term and their useful lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life,

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Useful Life Useful life as per
{Years) Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013
{Years)
Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6
Plant and machinery 5-25 15
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 10
Vehicles 8 8
Office equipment 5-10 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, bas determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule H to the Companies Act 2013.
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Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company had elected to use the fair value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the date
of transition i.e. 1 April 2015, and designate the same as deemed cost. Fair value was determined by

obtaining an external third-party valuation, a level 3 valuation technique.

Intangible assets

‘Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if

any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortisation
Intangible assets of the Company represent computer software. Computer software are amortized using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years). The amortization period
and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets (except trade receivable without a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of a
financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of the
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consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between the transaction price and the fair
value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market or a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company recognizes the difference as a gain or
loss at inception (‘day 1 gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or loss is deferred and
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the transaction until the transaction matures
or is closed out. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both coilecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would

otherwise atise,

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
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to management. The information considered includes:

~ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model} and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales

and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and forthecred it risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assefs: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets
at amortised cost

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FVOCl under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
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at FVOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not

tetain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not

derecognized.

Financial liahilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertible preference
shares denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the
number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair valuoe,

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
simiiar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised
at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value
of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
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components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The equity component of a compound financial
instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the
cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain
or loss is recognised.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the original or modified terms of a debt instrument,

Such guarantees are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the expected credit loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

- the amount recognised initially less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance

with Ind AS.

Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that refiect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans.
The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised as equity
component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs
and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification in the terms of such
loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it becoming perpetual debt
such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been treated as other equity.

Concessional overdraft facility

The Company has availed overdraft facility from banks at an interest rate lower than the market rate,
because its holding company has pledged fixed deposits with the banks for this overdraft facility. This
difference between the interest rate charged by the bank and market rate is treated as deemed equity
provided by the holding company, with a corresponding debit to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets:
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified

asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value,
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If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the

modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

The Company also recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on finance lease receivables, which
are disclosed as financial assets.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

-significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.¢. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
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are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as

the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e, the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheef
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the assets.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that

there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s {or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit) {CGU}.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
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recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated,
if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of

CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprises stock of food and beverages (including liquor), operating supplies and stock-
in~trade are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. In
determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO™) method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make

the sale.
Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (i} the grant/subsidy will be received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme
The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations.

Service Exports from India scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis at realizable value,

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects curtent market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates at

each reporting date.
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Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period
during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits

(a) Shori-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees,

(b) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts, Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's coniributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service, If the contribution already paid is less
than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit
payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future

payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity
The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
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using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final

obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

(c) Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer, Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the Company
has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time,

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing, the
same is presented as Unbilled revenue.

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is eartier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under an
obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or

services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

a1
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Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which is
recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been provided
as per the contract with the customer.

Property Management and Space rentals

Property Management and Space rental income comprises amount earned for use of hotel premises space
by other parties. The income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and
no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration,

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on

a net basis,
14) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or teceivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable rightto set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or

loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there Is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be

realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or such tax assets and

liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM),
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Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages
in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other compenents.

16) Leases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had issued Ind AS
116 Leases which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets
out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessors
and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is or
contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (if) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term

of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the

lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to
a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-substance fixed’
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payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain
that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any

lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which
guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-
substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which
are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor
At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a

finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in
the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease,

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

17) Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive.
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18) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value,

19) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax
(EBITDA)} as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss, The Company measures
EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does
not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense, exceptional items and tax expense.

20) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Company and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic area of

operations; or
- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of profit and loss is
re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year,

21) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary
activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the
financial statements,

22) Investment property

Investment property consists of property principally held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Recognition and measurement
Property that is held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, and that is not

occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially
at its cost, Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
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Subsequent expenditure and disposal

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an

investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment property is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM} to allocate their cost, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the management based on technical estimates).
Further, leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and their useful lives, The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off),

The management’s estimate of useful life is as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life Useful life as per
(years) Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013
Building 60 60
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£

Non-current financial assets - Other financial asseis
(Unsecured considered good)

Bank deposiis {due to mature afier 12 months from the reporting date)® #
Lease receivable
Security deposits

# includes interest acerued on fixed deposits amounting to MR Mil (31 March 2022 - TNR ¢.013

* Includes deposils under lien amaunting to [NE il (31 Macch 2022 - [NR (0.6%)

Other tax assets (nef)

Tax deducted at source

Imcome tax
At The major p ds ol i 1ax exp are
Recognlsed in profit or loss
Current tax
Deferred tax
Recognlsed In Other comprehensive income
[ncome tax on olher comprehensive income
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate {tax exp and the acc ing proflt

Loss before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic lax rate

Tax effect of:

Mo recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differances
Non-deductible expenses

Others

Effective tax rate

C. Deferred tax assets { liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed business lossas and depreciation

Disallowance u's 43B of Income-tax Acl, 1961 for acerued inlerest
Provision for employee benefi

Loss allowance for doubiful debts

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilitles

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assels
Trade payables

Lease receivable

Nel deferred lax asset*

Net deferved tax asset recogmised*

*The Company has significan! unebsorbed depreciation and carry forward business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961 In view of ab
fulure taxable profits, defermed tax asseis has been recognised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities only

n»rn d by C

As al As
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
042 089
- Q35
19,42 2034
19.84 30.58
As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
30.40 20.01
30.40 20.m
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
pany's d tic tax rate)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
P LFY A i Percentage Amount
(45.60) (570:30)
25.1M% {11.48) 2517 (143.53}
=24 27% 1107 -22 2% 126.9%
31.31% (14.28) -(39% 221
-32.21% 14.69 -251% 14 33
As al Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
658,58 73354
161.44 13959
232 27
380 230
244 237
§20.08 38091
(250.79) {289.01)
{1.00} .
(2.35) (5:89)
(254.14) (294.90)
57494 5£86.01
of bl inty of sufficient
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D. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2023

Balance as at| Movement Recognised Recognised Balance as at
Particulars 1 April 2021 | during 2022-23| in equity during in OCI during 31 March 2023
2022-23 2022-23
Praperty, plant and equipment, Other intangible assets and Investment Property (289.01) 38.22 - (250.79)
Unabsorbed b losses and deprectation 733.94 {75.36) - 658.58
Lease receivable {5.39) 3.54 (2.35)
L ease liabilities 237 007 2.44
Trade payables - {1.00) {1.00}
Disallowance w's 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 for accrued interest 139.59 21.85 - 161.44
Loss allowance for trade receivables 2.30 1.50 380
Provision for employee benefits 271 .11 - 2.82
Total 586,01 (1L.07) - 574,94
31 March 2022
Balance as at |  Movement Recognised in | Recognised in OCI Balance as at
Particulars 1 April 2021 | during 2021-22|  equity during during 2021-23 31 March 2022
2021-22
Property, plant and equiy Other intangible assets and Investment Property {277.40) {11.61) - (289.01)
Unabsorbed business [osses and depreciation 649.97 £3.97 - 133,94
Lease receivable (8.86) 2.97 = (5.89)
Lease liabilities 230 9.07 - 237
Disallowance w's 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 for accrued interest $6.55 53.04 139.59
Loss allowance for rade receivables 225 0.05 - 230
Provision for employee benefits 4.21 (1.50) - 2.7
Total 459.02 126.9% - 586.01
E. Tax Losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asser was recognised with expiry date as follows
As At
31 March 2023
Amount Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 7388 2023-24
Business loss 11217 2024-25
Business loss 87.25 2025-26
Business loss BTG 2026-27
Business loss 1.32 2027-28
Business loss 23296 2028-29
Business loss 259,57 2029-30
Unabsorbed depreciation [,804.84 Never Expire
As at
31 March 2022
Amount Expiry Date
{Financial Year)
Business loss 59.59 2022-23
Business loss 731,88 2023-24
Business loss 113817 2024-25
Business loss 87.25 2025-26
Business loss 38.79 2026-27
Business loss 232.96 2028-29
Business loss 28315 2029-30
2,022 41 Mever Expire

Unabsorbed depreciation
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SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{AN aniounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

11

11a

1ib

12

13

Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- 1IN CUTTent accounts

- in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less) #
Cash on hand

# includes inferest accrued on fixed deposits amounting to INR 0.04 (31 March 2022 - INR 0.01)

Current financial assets - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Bank deposits {original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) *#

# includes interest accrued on fixed deposits amounting to INR 0.39 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil)

Current financial assets - Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

Loan to related parties
Loan to holding company &

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
63.93 105.27
3032 4,01
1.00 0,32
95.26 109.60
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
5949 -
59.49 -
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

134,66

134.66

# During the previous year, the Company has given unsecured loan to its holding company for 12 months carrying inferest rate of 13% per annum.

Cuarrent financial assets - Other financial assets As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Security deposits 1.09 L1z
Lease receivable 235 14.06
Other receivables 6.33 -
16.77 15,18
Other current assets As at As at
{Unsecured, considered good) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Staff advance 0.34 0.36
Advance to suppliers 579 213
Balance with statutory authorities 996 7.51
Other advances - 31.80
Prepaid expenses 11.72 [L76
27.81 53,56




SAMHI Hutels (Abmedubad) Private Limited
Nutes Lo the linancial statements for the year ended 38 Macch 2023
(A amorats in Rupees Miflions, cxcepl for thare detaifs and waless ofherwise staled)

14 Equily share capicsd A Asal
3 Murch 2023 31 Murch 2022
Numsber af shares Anmont Mumnber of shares Ambum|
Authorised share capial
Class A cquity shares of INR 10 each 2,293,300 23.00 2290.900 3.0
Class B coquity sharos of TR 10 each # 100 . o -
0,.001% Compalsorily convenible preference shares of JNR. 10 oach £, 200,000 63,00 6,300,000 3,00
B.G00,000 B0 B 600,000 B0
Issucd, subscribed sad fally psid wp
Class A equity shares of INR 10 cach 2,164,935 2165 2,164,936 265
Class B cquity shares ofiMR 10 each # i1 : 10 =
0.001% Comipulserily convoriible preforence shares ofiMR 10 cach * . a . .
L1946 21.65 2064946 21465
* These preferonce shares have been classifiod os compound Fnancial i and disclosed wader the head *Ouker equiy’. Roler noke 15
# Amonnt is below rounding off theeshold adopied by the Company:
1) Reconcllintion of the equity shares sutstanding at the beginadaz and 51 (bt cnd of year
For the year caded For the year emded
31 March 2023 3t Muerch 2022
Nambee #f shares Amount Twmber af shares Amonny
Class A equicy shares
At the beginning of the vear 2164936 21 65 2.164.930 21 65
At e cad of the year 2164936 21.65 2.164.9306 21.65
Cluys B equity shares
Al the beginning of the year # 1] - 10 =
At the cnd of (he year 10 - 10 -
®.11% Compulsorily comvertible preference shares
At the boginning of the year 300,000 G300 G, 3th000 0300
At the emd of the year 6, 304,060 63.00 6, I 6300
# Amount i below rounding off threshold sdapied by the Company.
b} Shares hodd by Hodding Company
Al Az al
A0 Murch 2023 M March 2017
Number Amount Numbor Ameunt
Cluss A cquity shares
Holding, Company - $AMHI Hotols Limited 2,004,936 .65 2,164,936 2165
Clhiss B equily shares
Holdimg Company - SAMH! Hodels Limiied # [} - 1n -
0,001% Compulyserily convertible prefeccnce shares
Holding Company - SAMHI Holels Limiled G30M0000 53,00 B, 300NN LR
<) $harcy reserved for insue
Number Amaunt Number Amoust
L.001% Compulsonily converible prefersnce sharcs G.300,000 63,00 5,300,000 G300
di Sharchelders holding more than 5% of che sharcs MNumber % of holding Number % of helding
Chass A cquity sharces
SAMH] Hotels Limited. the HoMing Company * 2.164.936 1174 2164930 100%%
Clays B cquity shares
SAMHI Hedels Limited n 100%% 11 Lipes
0901 % Compulzorily toms ortible prefirence shares
SAMHI Hotels Limited o, 300,000 100%% 6, 300,000 {11
* Mr. Ashish Jakbanwala holds | equily share as a nomines sharchalder.
# Amount is below rounding ofT threshold adopied by the Company:
A5 per records of the Company, including s repisier of sharchold bers and other declarstions received from sharcholders regarding benclicial mierest, he sbove sharcholing reopresents both Jegal and benchicial cunership

ol gharts




SAMUI Hatel: (Abmedabad) Private Limiged
Noiles 1o the finuncial siatements for 1he year ended 31 Murch 2023
(A amots in Rupees Miflions. except for share detatls and nlers otherwise siated)

) Rights, preferences and resiriclions sitached e equity shares
The Company has Iwo clssses ol equity shanes kaving par vahe off MR 10 per share viz. Class A and Class B

Class A equity share shall meaw ke cquity shary of e company which shall entitle the halders thereol (o normal dividend rights and onc vale per such Class A equity sharo and such other rights, prefer¢nces. and privileges as

provided in memorandun and artickes of association of the company.
Class B equin shars shall mean the cquity shares of e company having me ighis bul superior veling rights in respest of the reseried mollers snch that Class B shareholders shall be emitked 1 threa (2 times of the voting

rights held by Class A sharcholders and such other rights, preferences, and prisileges a5 provided in memorandum and arlicles of aseocialion of ke company.

In the event of liquidation ol the Company, the halder of equity shares will be ratilbcd 1o recoive remaining asseis of the Company, afier distribwtion of all prefarcntial amounts. The distribation nill be in proportion 1o the number of
equity shares held by the sharcholders

Iy Rights, termns, peeferenecs and restriciions atiached (o proforon ce shares
o ksoril it harcs (CCFS) shall rank pari passu with Ihe equity shars of (he compansy inrespect of any disidend peyableia hoMers of equity shares afier the CCPS coupon is paid (o holders, Tho CCPS shall

l:lnar; Tixed dividend (@ {;llﬂl% p.a. pasable on each quanicr swbject to applicable withholdmg tax
Each CCPS shall be comveried into lpwer of'; ono (1) Class A equity sharo of company or sueh ownber of Class A equiry shares as d
Class A eeuity share of compamy al carlicst of -

(¥ (he date CCPS holers holding mt beas) 90% of tho then owstanding CCPS elect o convet the CCPS,

(i} the pecyrmencs of liquidin: event: and

{1ii} Ue expiration dalc, which is 20 years from ihe dale of issue of CCPS

Upon conversion. Class A equily shares of (he company, issucd 1o COPS hokders. shall be free from all emcumbrance, fully paid-up, having full voling rights and shall rank pani passu in avery respect with then owistending Class A

cquity shares of the compamy,
The CCPS are non-marketable and the company does nod intend to, and zhall nod list CCPS on sny recogniscd stock exchange in or owtside India, as por sharcholdor's agrecment

[ sharchokder's g, The CCPS shall conver into

with p

in

) Mo shars kang been allotied without payment of cash o by wan of bonues shares oc shares bought back during the period of Mve vears immediatchy procoding the Palance Sheel dake

h} Delaiks of shaces held by promaters

As 5131 March 2423
o eishwics 4y Na. of shares al the
Type of equity shares Prometer Name the beginning of Change doring the year :.m] afth :' ot % of Total Shares %o chunge during the year
the yenr
Class A equity shares SAMHI Hotels Limited 2,164 935 - 2,164,935 90.9995% No change
Class B cquity sharcs SAMHI Holcls Limited [14] - n QLGRS Mo change
pA LR L - 2,164.945
As at 31 March 2022
[ Ma. of sharas at the
Trpe of cquiy sharcs Pramoter Narie the beginnimg o Change dwrlng dhe year c‘nﬂ of e yosr *% of Todal Shares % chunge dwring the year
the yeu
Class A oquily shares SAMHI Howls Linited L164.935 - 2164035 P9 D005 Mo chango
Class B aquity shares SAMHI Hotels Limited o - 1] L0055 Mo chango

2,164,945 - 2164395




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees Miilions, except for share details and unless otherwise stated)

15

Other equity

Equity component of interest free loans from Holding company
Equity component of Compound financial instrument
Securities premium

Retained earnings

Equity component of concessional overdraft faclility

a} Equity component of interest free loans from Holding company
Balance ai the beginning of the year

Add ; Additions made during the year

Balance at the end of the year

This represents the interest free loans received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the holding company which are repayable at the option of the Company

(considered as perpetual debt).

b) Equity component of Compound financial instrument
Balance at the beginning of the y=ar
Balance at the end of the year

This represents the equity component of compound financial instrurnents (0.001% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 each).

¢) Securijties premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
392.69 392.69
63.00 63.00
1,397.55 1,397.55
(2,911.41) {2.865.51)
4.90 4.90
(1,053.27) (1,007.37)
392.69 392.69
392.69 392,69
63.00 63.00
63.00 63.00
1,397.55 1,397.55
1,397.55 1,397.55

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 201 3.

d) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Loss for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the vear

Retained eamings represent the amount of accumulated profits/(fosses) of the Company.

¢) Other comprehensive income - Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / asset
Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilicy / asset

Transferred to retained carnings

Balance at the end of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses.
f) Equity component of concessional overdraft faclility

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

(2,865.51) (2,295.56)
(45.60) (570.30)
(0.30) 0.35
(2.911.41) (2.865.51)
(0.30) 0.35
0.30 (0.35)
4.90 4.90

4.90 4.90

This represents the impact of overdraft facility availed by the Company at an interest raie lower than the market interest rate.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amourts in Rupees Miflions, except for shave details and unless otherwise stated)

16 Non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Term loans
a) From Bank (secured)
Term loans - 6018.56
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21} - (60.65)
- 557.91
b) From Financial institution {secured) *
Term loans 3,192.06 3,521.53
Less: Interest accrued on borrowings (refer note 24) (619.74) (24.27
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21) (122.26) (576.88)
2,450.06 2,920.38
¢} From Bank {unsecured)
Term loans 61.14 -
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 21} (61.14) -
Loan from Holding Company (unsecured) # 288.63 -
2,738.69 3,478.29

* includes interest accrued on term loan from financial institation amounting to INR Nil (31 March 2022 - INR 529.66}
# includes interest accrued on unsecured loan from holding company amounting to INR 49.34 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil)

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks is included in note 38.
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SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amounis in Repees Millions, excepr for share details and wifess otherwise siaied)

16a MNon-current financial liabilities - Trade payables As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micrs enterprises and smal| enterprises (MSME)

- tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.60 -

4.60 -

P P to y and liguidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 38

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
Asat 31 March 2023

Outstanding for lollowing periods from due date of

Particulars EAxc:enses Less than I year | 1-2 years 2-3years |More than 3 years Total

i) MSME % 5 L = E =
(i) Others - 4,60 - . - 4.60
Totat - 4.60 = - - 4.60

The Company does not have any disputed dues which are payable a5 at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022




SAMH] Hatels {(Ahmedabad) Privare Limited
Modes to che financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN ammimis in Rupees Millions, except for share deioly and unless olhenrise siated)

17 Non-carrent financisl liabitiies - Lease liabilities Asal As ac
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilivkes {refer note 43) B84 g6l
§.84 861
18 Non-current fimancial liabiliies - Other financial lisbilities
(Unsecured . nnfess oterwise staied)
Scourity deposils 40,59 34 84
40.99 3484
19 Mon curvent Provisions
Provision for emplovee beaeiing
Gratuity {Refer noie 42) 130 214
Compensaied absenees (Refer nole 42) 034 036
164 150
10 Onker non-currest liabilities
Income recered in advance 5370 5691
Advance rental 063 106
54.33 5097
21 Current financial liabilities - B ing
a} From Bank (secured)
Crgrdral facility - 3233
Current maturitics of long; (erm borrowings - G065
- 11298
b} From Financial sslitution (secured)
Currenl itics of bong terme b ings 13226 376 B8
12236 576.88
<) From Bawk [unsecured)
Overdrait fociline 1434
Current maturitics of bang term bormowings Gl )4 -
7548 -
197.74 689,86
Irierest rutr churgad por senem
Sanctioned Amount -
Particalars {INR Milliens) o Al . Term Security detuils
31 Murch M3 31 March X2z
(Overdrafl facility foom Bank
Stundtard Chorkered Bonk 1000 {MCLR plus margin - [MCLR plus margie  [Repavable on demand |[The overdrafl eiity 15 secured by firsy
of 1.63% ic. L1.05%|of 1.65% ie. 10.75% exelusive charge over the hoiel asset locaed
p-a. pa o Ahmedabad (both Immos able property and

movable (ived assets} and charge on curreny
and future receivobles and cash Nows of the
ot

The holding compam- has provided a cash
shorifall underiaking,

During the veer ended 31 March 2023, hotel
has been sold and the proceeds have been
wiilized for portial mepayment of loon and
securiiy has been reloased on 10 harch 2023
The remaining loan has been shown as
unsccurcd,
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22 Currest financial lisbilities - Trade payables Az al As ol
31 March 2023 51 March 1022
Trade povables
- total outstanding dues of ricro tnierprises and small crierprises {MSME) ) 715 176
- tonal owtsranding ducs ol creditors other than micro enterprises and smoll enlerprises IBLID 192.9%
188 95 196.74

a) Refer note 40 for Disclosures under Micry, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development Ael, 2006 {M5SMED)
b} Refer nowe 37 for dues to relaicd parties
) The Company’s exposwre 1o cutency and liquidity risks related to trade pavables is disclosed node 38

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Accrued Expenses Legs Ihan 1 vear 1-2 years 2-J vears Mare ibae 3 years Total
() MSME - 7A0 003 - 0.2 788
{ 1) Others 1368 9254 1w 1433 w33 18110
Total 33.69 100.33 M0 1433 655 [88.95

As at 31 March 2022

Qutstanding for fallowing periods from date of transaction

Parliemlars Accrwed Expenses | Lessihan 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 vears Tatal
i i} MSME - 165 00 - 0402 3.Ta
(11} Cithers 24,506 5173 2939 48 58 280 191.95
Tutal 24,56 S A0 1938 43.58 182 196.74

The Company docs nol have any disputed dues which are pavabe as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
23 Curcent financis] liabilities - Lease lishilities

Lease Liabilities {refer nole 43) 0.7 (%]
0.7% 0,79

24 Current (inancial Eabilities - Others

Interest acerued on borrowings (refer nois 16) LR | 4.7
Emplovee related payables FINT 700
Payable for capilal agsels 418 3l
Security deposits received - [ NE]
646.79 3483
25 Other eurrent liab#ities
Advanee from customers 033 152
Advance renal 247 361
Staltory dues payatle 5645 »73
Income meeived in odvance 3.20 i
7145 43.16
26 Corrent provisioms
Provision for employee beacfils
Groiuity (refer nolc 423 055 141
Compensaled sbsenees (refer note 42) 021 021
1.62

1.6
— —
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27

25

)

30

Revenue from sperations

Sale of services
- Room revenue

- Food and beverage revenue
- Recreation and other services

Other operating revenues
- Property Management and space rental

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2022

613.62 216,95

32763 173.66

34.04 17.33

97529 407,94

8202 73.88

82.02 73.58

1.057.31 481.82

The conract Liabiliies primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the pecfonmance obligation is over/ services
delivered, Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related perfonmance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received fram the customner towards
rooms/ Testaurant’ banquets, Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services. Excess of

d in the

revenue over invoicing is recorded as unbilled revenue, R

nue recog

Coniract liabilities
Advance from customers

Trade receivables

Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilities are generally
same operating cycle.

Other income

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
- bank deposits

- on loan to holding company

Amortisation of income received in advance

Gain on modification of fGinancial liabilities

Interest on income tax cefind

Lease Income

Rental income

Unwinding of discount on security deposits

Cost of materials consumed

Consumption of food and beverages
[nventory at the beginming of the year
Add: Purchases

Inventory ar the end of the year

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribation 10 provident and other funds [refer node 42 and 35(i)]
Compenzated absences (refer note 42)

Gratuity expense (refer note 42)

Staff welfare expenses

of profit and losz is same az the contracted price.

As at As at
3 March 2023 3 March 2022
9.33 772
1239 69.54
and trade receivables are converted into cash within the
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 202}
4.72 1.40
.63 240
3.20 320
11.66 -
I.i& -
L.30 219
381 369
020 0.20
26.70 12.1%
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
423 553
95.50 53.10
(6.31) (4.23)
93.47 54.3%
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
96.58 6715
6.30 4.42
050 210
0.6l 0.60
9.26 .24
113.65 £0.51




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited
Noies to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounis in Rupees Millions, except for shave derails and unless orherwise stated)

31

32

33

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial Liabilities carTied at amortised cost
- On security deposit received

- Loan from bank and financial institution

- Loan from retated party

- Others

Bank charges

Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues

Interest on [ease liabilities

Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of Right-to-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Other expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others

Advertisement and business promotion
Commission

Communication

Consumption of stores and supplies
Contractual labour

General administration expenses
Hotel running expenses

Insurance

Legal and professional charges
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Management and incentive fees
Payment to auditars {refer below)
Power, fuel and water

Loss allowance for trade receivables
Rates and taxes

Rent expenses
Training expenses

Govemnment grant written off
Travelling expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors comprises (net of tax}
As auditor
{1} Statutory audit

In other capacity
{1) Reimbursement of expenses
(ii) Other services

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

4,12 3.51

437.99 453.07
49.58 -
170 -

- 0.01
3.02 8.78
1.03 1.00
4.77 1.10

508.21 46747
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
141.24 147.99
3.08 308
218 218
4.39 2.90
150.89 156.15
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
14.30 4,78
9.74 12.38
13.64 §22
32.04 16.27
26.04 10.85
2,67 1.19
3T [9.19
34,47 18.24
5.00 404
7.18 3.98
310 4.17
54.68 34.20
11.28 2.80
5538 10.34
1.15 1.23
54.63 42.26
5.95 0.19
21.21 17.21
11.25 14.06
1.55 1.50
z 0T
26.27 438
4.90 261
434.70 234.80

1.10 L10
.05 0.11

- 0.02
1.15 1.23

Sl
© e
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34  Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS}) For the year ended For the year ended

35

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

From continuing eperations

Net (loss) atiributable to equity shareholders (216.91} (493.28)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 2,164,946 2,164 946
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Nominal value of equity share (INR) 10 10
Basic camning per share (INR) {10.02) (23.02)
Diluted eaming per share {INR) (10.02) (23.02)
From discontinued operations
Net profit/ (loss} atiributzble 1o equity sharcholders 171.31 (72.02)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Noeminal value of equity share {INE.) 10 10
Basic eaming per shars (INR} 7.9 {3.33)
Diluted eaming per share {INR) 7.91 (3.33)
From continuing and di tinued operations
Net (loss} attributable to equity shareholders (45.60) (570.30)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS 2,164,946 2,164,946
Nominal value of equity share {TNR} 10 10
Basic earning per share (INR} (2.11} (26.35)
{2.11) (26.35)

Dhiluted earmning per share ([ME}
* The outstanding potential equity shares have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS. Hence, the same have not been considered for calculation of Diluted eamings per

share.

Contingent liabilities and commitments
(to the extent not provided for)

Conti liabilities

=

Particalars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total demand | Amount Total demand Amount paid under
paid under protest
protest
Gujarat Value Added Tax Act, 2003 - - 1.71 1.71
Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 26.50 - - -
Total 26.50 - 1.71 L71

(i} In February 2019, Supceme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under  The
Employees Provident Fund and miscellaneous provisions act, (952, The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the
application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods. For the period 1 March 2019 to 31
March 2019, the Company has made a provision for provident find contribution in the books of accounts amounting to INR 0.27.

{ii) The Company had received an assessment order under Gujarat VAT Act, 2003 for financial year 2014-15 whereby demand of INR 1.7] has been raised. The

Company had deposited the aforesaid amount and had filed an appeal against the aforesaid order. The Deputy State Tax Commissioner passed order on 17 June
2022 in favor of the Company and the amount has been recevied during the year,

{iii) During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company received notices under section 148 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 for assessment year 2014-15, 2015-16 and

under section [48A of the Tncome-tax Act, 1961 for assessment year 2018-19 for initiating re-assessment proceedings against the Company. The reason for
reassessment for AY 2014-15 and 20[5-16 is issue of shares on securities premium and for AY [8-19 is repayment of Joan to holding company The management
has filed its response against the notices, ¢iting factual inaccuracies in the notices, Subsequent to year end 31 March 2023, the Company has received a
favourable order AY 2014-15 and 2015-16. [n respect of AY 201 8-19, management believes that based on the facts of the case and considering that the Company
had significant unabsorbed depreciation in the respective years, no liability is likely to devolve on the Company.

(iv) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has recefved a notice u/s 263 of Income Tax Act, 1961 in relation to revision of assessment order passed u/s

143(3) for AY 2018-19 on account of non deduction of TDS on certain foreign payments amounting to INR 33.15. The managetnent has filed its response against
such notices, citing the fact that such transactions were in the nature of reimbursments not liable for TDS. Further the management believes that based on the
facts of the case and considering that the Company had significant unabsorbed depreciation in the respeclive year, no lLiability is likely to devolve on the

Company.

(v) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has received notice from Commissioner { Appeals-1), Central Tax against adjudicating order passed by
Additional Commisioner of Central tax, Rangareddy CGST commissionerate dated 17 June 2022 on account of penalty of INR. 26.50 to be levied on account of
delay in deposit of GST for the period April 2020 to December 2020 (except July 2020). Management belisves that based on the facts of the case no liability is
likely to devolve on the Company.
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36 Operating Segments

The Helding Company's Chief’ Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODMY, since he is responsible for all major decisions w.ct, the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budger, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new Ffacility. CODM has examined the Company's
performance from product and geographic perspective and has identified a single busi gment i.e. "Developing and ing of hotels”, hence no specific disclosures have been
made.

a) Information about producis and services

Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

b} Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India. Forther, there are no non-current assets located ourside India.

¢} Informuation about major cusiomers (from exteroal customers)
The Company does nol derive revenve from one customer which would amonnt to 10 per cent or more of the Compamy's revenue,

37 Related party disclosures
a} Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists:
Mature of relationship Name of the related party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

b} Other related parties with whom rransactions have taken place:

Narure of relationship Name of the related party
CASPIA Hotels Private Limited
Argon Hotels Private Limited

SAMH! IV Business Hotels Private Limired
SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

c) Related paréy transactions during the year:

Particulars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Repayment of boun from holding company (including interest)
SAMHI Hotels Limited 135.23

Unsecured loan talen
SAMHI Hotels Limited 41226 - - -

Unsecured loan given
SAMHI Hotels Limited =

132.50 - -

Unsecured loan repaid
SAMHI Hotels Limited 172,97

Irterest exy on ungecured loan
SAMHBI Hotels Limited 405G = . -

Interest income on unsecured loan
SAMHI Hotels Limited

0.63 2,40 - -

Reimb of exp (net)
SAMHI Hotels Limited 577
CASPLA Hotels Private Limited
Argon Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI 1V Busi Hewels Private Limited -

- 453 L3
= - §.49 040
- 2.11 4.5¢

Legal and professignal charges {cost allocation from holding company}
SAMHI Horels Limited

31.58 21.47 - =
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Jing at year end:

d) Related party bal

Fellow Subsidiaries

|Particulars

Holding C:

¥

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Equity ¢ t of interest free boans

SAMHI Hotels Limited

392.69

392.6%

Equity component of 0.001%% Compulserily conversible preference shares

(including security pr

SAMHI Hotels Limnited

1.260.00

1.260.00

I overdraft Gacility

Equity comy

SAMHI Hotels Limited

4.90

4.90

Trade payables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

CASPLA Hotels Private Limited

30.33

0.18

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

0.36

S.A4MHI Hotels {Gurgaon} Private Limited

.15

Trade receivables

SAMHI Hotels Limited

1.6

1.53

CASPIA Hotels Private Limited

Q.14

1.12

Argon Hotels Private Limited

003

1.55

Orther current assefs

SAMHI Hotels Limired

31.77

Unsecured loan given

SAMHI Hotels Limited

134.66

Unsecured byan taken

SAMHI Hotels Limited

288,63

The trangactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in ann's length

occurs in cash.

Oulstamding bal

at the year-end are unsecured and setilement

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company has not recorded any impaimment of receivables relating to amounts owed by celated parties. This assessment is

undertaken at each reporting period.

- The holding company has provided an undertaking on behalf of the Company in respect of Loans obtained from bank/financial institution. {Refer note 16)

- The holding company has provided corporate gaurantee 1o Starwaod Hotels and Resorts India Private Limited (operator of the company) pursuant to the op

entered by the Company.

f SETVICES B

- There was a pledge over shares of fellow subsidiary i.e. SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited which are held and owned by the holding company in vespect of the borrowings

from financial institurion till Januacy 2022, {Refer note 16)

- The Company has provided security of freehold land (Sheraton, Hyderabad property) on behalf of the holding company in respect of the loan obtained by the holding company from
Piramal Capita! & Housing Finance Limited amounting to INR 750.00 (31 March 2022: INR 750,00 and INR £50.00)
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38  Fioandal instroments — Fair valwes and risk management

A) Financial instruments by category and fair value

The below table izes the judg and asti made in delermining the fair values of the financial insiruments thal are {a} recognised and measured at fair value and (b} measured al amoriised
cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial stat Ta provide an indication about the reliability of the inpuis used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels p ibed under the i dard

31 March 2023
Fair Valwe Through | Fair Value Through

Parlicolars Level
! Hierarcnlf Profit and Loss (ther Comprehensive Amortised Cost
i (FVTPL) Income (FYTOCI)
Financinl assets
MNon-current
Other financial assels - - 1984
Current
Trade receivables - - 112.35
Cash and cash eguivalents - - 9526
Other bank balances - - 5949
Other financial assels - - 16.77
Total financial assets - - 303.75
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Bormowings 2 - - 2,738 69
Lease Jiabilflies - - 8384
Trade payables - - 4.60
Other financial liabilities - - 40 95
Current
Borrowings 2 - - 197 .74
Lease liabilities - - 079
Trade payables - - 188 95
Ohiher It =1 liahi s, = - 46 T
Total financial liabilities - - 382739
31 March 2022
) Fair Value Through | Fair Value Through
Particulars
* Hli.;v::;ll' Profit and Loss Other Comprehensive Amortised Cost
Y (FYTPL) Income (FYTOCT)
Financial assets
MNon-current
Other financial assets - - J0.58
Current
Trade recervables - - 6994
Cash and cash equivalents - - 109,60
Loans - - 134 66
Other financial asseis - - 1518
Total financial assets - - 350.96
Financial liabilities
Noo-current
Bonrowings 2 - - 347829
Lease liabilities - - 3.6]
Oither financial liabilities - - 3484
Current
Borrowanas 2 - - 639.86
Lease liabilities - - .7
Trade pavables - - 196.74
Orther fi 1al liabilities - - 34.53
- 4.443.66

|Total financial liabilities -
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A) Financial instruments by categery snd fair value {continued)

The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, orher current financial assets, current loans, current borrowings, trade payables snd other current financial liabilities

approximate their camying amounts, due to their shori-term nature,

Interest rates on non-curent borrowings (borrowings from bank and financial institution) are equivalent to the market rate. Such borrowings are coniracted at floating rates and rates are reset at short
imtervals. Accordingly, the carmying value of such bomowings approximates fair value.

Fair value of bank deposits {included in other non-current financial assels) are equivalent to their carrying smount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent to market rate,

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of lease receivables (included in other non-current financial assets) because their carmying are a ble approximation of fair values,

The fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not required to be disclosed.
Fair valuation of non-current financial assets and liabilities has been disclosed to be same as camrying value as there is no significant difference between carrying value and fair value.

B) Measurement of fair values
Fair values are eateporised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markeis for identicsl assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs ather than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.. as prices) or indirecily (i.¢. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

There are no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
C) Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: marker risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

The Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer under the directions of the Board of Directors impl financial risk policies across the Company. The Company’s risk 2
policies are established o identify and ana]yse rhe risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate isk 1imits and controls, to monitor risks and adherence 1o limits in order to minmize the financial

impact of such risks. The risk p and sy are reviewed regularly to reftect changes in market conditions and the Company*s activities.
i, Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the C vy if a or party to & financial i fails to meet its contractual obligations. The camying amount of financial assets represent the

maximum credit risk exp . The Company has credit policies in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis,

To cater to the credit risk for balances with banks, only high rated banks are accepted
dati The Company does not expect

The Company has given security deposits to Government departments and to vendors for securing services from them and rental deposits from employee
any defaull from these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

In respect of cradit exposures from rade receivablesfunbilled flease receivables, the Company has policies in place to ensure that sales on credit without collateral are made prncipally to travel
apenis and corporate companies with an appropriate credit history. Sales to other customers are made in cash or by credit’debe cards

In case of lease receivables, the Company holds certain amounts as collateral in the form of security deposits.

The C blishes an all for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables. The mmgement uses a sunplrﬁed approach for the purpose of

computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In monitoring customer eredit risk, cust are grouped ding to their credit ch iskcs, i hether they are an individual or

legal entity, their geographical location, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any.
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Reconciiation of loss allowance provision

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 212 890
Changes in loss allowance 595 012
Closing balance 15.07 9.12
The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed sbove are based on assumplions about risk of defaull and expected loss rates The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and

selecting the inputs 1o the impairment ¢alculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward loolong estimates at the end of sach reporting period

i Liquidity risk

The Company’s approach to

ging Jiquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity lo meel ils liabilities when they are due, under both nommal and stressed conditions

Uitimate responsibility For liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriale liquidity risk fi k for the of the Companys
short-tenm, medium 1em and long-term Funding and hquidity management requirements
{a) Exposure to liquidity risk
following are the ining ¢ tual maturities of financial liakilities at the reporuing date. The amounis are gross and undiscounled:
Contractual cash fllows (INR)
31 March 2023 Carrying smount Total -1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
Mo - derivative linancial liabilties
MNon-cument borowings 21869 246225 - 234.31 52424 1703 .70
Mon-current Trade payables 4.60 465 445 = -
Non-current Lease Liabilities 834 3082 - 0,83 278 211
Other non-current financial habilities 4099 4099 - 3938 L1l -
Currenl borrowings 197 74 197.74 197.74 - E .
Current Lease Liabilities 039 a7 0719 - T .
Current Trade payables 18395 188.95 182 95 - - -
Other cumenl financial ligbilities £46,79 64679 646.79 - . b
3,827,238 3.572.98 1,034.27 27967 £18.13 1,730.91
Contracinal cash fgpws (INR}
31 March 2022 Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
MNom-derivative fimancial liabilities
Mon-current borrowings 3,478 29 349815 - TI2.51 699,53 20711
Non-current Lease Liabilities 86l 3162 - 079 2,66 2817
Other non-current financial habilities 3434 3484 - g3 481 -
Current borrowings 68986 689,86 639 86 - . -
Current Lease Liabilities [t 079 Q70 - -
Trade payables 196.74 19674 196 74 - - -
Other coment financial liahilities 3451 34.53 34.53 - - -
4,443.606 4,486.53 921.92 750.33 T07.00 2,107.28
Also, refer note 41 for disclosures on Going Concemn assumption
(b} Financing arrangements
The Company had actess to the following und b ing faciltties al the end of the réporting period:
As at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Floating rate
Expiring beyond one year (term loans from banks/ financial instingions) 313.07 -
Expiring within one year (bank overdraft) - 10515
31307 lﬁé

ili. Market risk

The Company is exposed bo market nsk pmarily relating io the risk of changes in markel prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, that will affect the Company’s mxpenze or the value of its

holdings of fi tal

Currency risk

The Company's
of the Company.

to foreign

y risk is on accounl of payables on account of imporis of capital goods, management fees and other expendilure in currencies other than the funclional currency
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Exposure t0 currency risk

The Compamy’s exposure to Foreign currency rigk at the end of the reponting period are as follows

31 March 2023 Currency Amount im foreign  INR in millions
curreny {in millions)
Financial liabililies
Trade payables usD a76 6249
31 March 2022
Currency Amount in foreign  INR in millions
curreny {in millions)
Financiel liabilities
Trade payables UsD 1.45 10555
Sensitivity analysis
A b ibl hening (weakening) of the Indian Rupes against foreign curmency at year end would have alfected the of fi | instruments denx
and affecled equnly and profit or Io&s by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all olber variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and
purchases
{Profit) / loss Equity, net ol tax
(inmase) / decrease

Effect in INK Strengthning Weakent Strengthming Weal
31 March 2023
1% movement
ush 0.62 (0.62) .47 (0.47)

0.62 (0.62) 0.47 (0.47)

{Profit) / boss Equity, net of tax
(increase) f decrease

Effect im INR Strengthning Weakening Strengthning Wenkening
31 March 2022
1% movement
ush 1.10 (.10 0.82 082y

1.10 {1.10} =82 (0.82)
Inferesi rate risk
Interest rate rigk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial i wall fl [ of ch in market interesl rates. The Comparny’s exposure to the nsk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily ta the Company’s borrowings with floating tnterest rates
The Company svaluales the inlerest rates in the market on a regular basis to explore the option of refi ing of | ings of the Company. M , majonity of the Company's bomowings are

primarily linked to floaling interest rates, thersby resulting in adjustmenis of its borrowing costs in line wath the marke! interest

Exposure to mierest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company”s inlerest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Amount in INR

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed-rate inglrmmenis
Financial assets - bank deposits 9024 4.90
Finaneial liabilities - Loan from holding company 285,63 .
378.87 4.90
Variable-rate instruments
Financizl liabililies - Term loans from hank 61,14 618,56
Firancial liabilitiez - Term loan from financial institulion 119206 3,521 53
Financial liabilities - Overdraft facilities from bank 1434 5233
3,267.54 4,192.42
Total 3,646.4_1 4._19?.32
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Fair valwe sensitivity analysis lor fixed-vate mstruments

The Company does not account for amy Hxed-rate financial assets or financizl liabilities at Fair value through profil or loss, Therefore, a change in inlerest rates al the reporting date would not affect profit
of loss. Refer note 38 A for fair value disclosure

Cashllow Sensitivity analysis for variable-rate insiruments

A reasonably pozsible change of 100 basis points {n interest rales at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) equity and profit of lass by the amaunts shown below. This anzlysis assumes thal
all other vaniables, remain constant

{Profit) / loss Equity, ne of tax
(increase) / decrease

100 bp increase 100 bp decrense 100 bp incrense 100 bp decrease
31 March 2023
Financial liabilities KA (39.94) 3994 (39.94)
Cashflow semstivity (wet} 39.94 (39.94) 39.94 39.94)
31 March 2022
Financial Jiabilities 37.58% (37.55) 3755 37.55)
Cushilow senstivity (nei} 3255 (31.55) 355 {37.55

Capital Mansgement

The Company's policy 15 to maintain a strong capital base 5o as 1o maintain investor, credilor and market confidence and to sustain Falure development of the business

The Board of directors of the holding pray seeks (o maintain a bal b the higher returns that might be passible with higher levels of b ing and 1he ad ges and security afforded by a
sound capital pasition

The Company monitors capital using loan to value (LTV) method 10 ensure that the laan to value does not increase beyond 55% on any given reporting dale al a Company level. As at 31 March 2023, the
loan to value is not ding 65% at a Company level

The Company is not subject lo imposed capital requi

As a part of its captial management poficy, the Campany did not heve any conlinuing defaults in the repayment of loans and inlerest. Thers have been no material loan covenant defaulis and there has been
no intmatian from the banks financial institution for recalling any loan Facility. The Company has sought and received waiver letters from all its lenders as a1 and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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40 Disclosures uwder Micro, Small sand Medium Ewterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED)
31 March 2023 31 March 2023

Dues to micrg and small enterprises
The amounls rernaiming unpaid to nicro and small enlerprises az at the end of the year:

Principal 785 1%
Interest 0.04 0.06
The amounts of the paymenis made to micro and small emerprises beyond the appointed day during each aceounting year
The amount of inlerest paid under the act beyond the appointed day during the year = -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 03s 005
year) bul withoul adding the interest specified under MSMED Acl, 2006,

039 211

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each acoounling year, and

The ameunt of further interest remaining due and payable even m the ding years, until such date when the interest duss as sbove are actually -
paid to the small enlerprise for the purpose of disallowancs as a deductible expandilurs under the Act

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enlerprises, as defined under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED). Accordingly, the disclasure in respect of the amounts payable 10 such enterprises as al 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 has been made in the
financial statements based on information received and available with the €

41 Going concern
The Company has a negalive net worth of INR 1,031 62 méllion as at 31 March 2023, incured & net loss of INR 45.90 million during the year ended 31 March 2023, and as of that date, the Conpany's

current lisbilities exceed its current assets by INR 782 85 million. As on 21 March 2023, the Company has been lasgely funded by loans from banks / financial institutions. Further, the Company has
contractual cash outflows of INR 1,034.27 million {excluding future | inkerest pay ) due within |2 months of the balance sheet dale.

[n the current year, consequenl 1o reduction in the number of COVID-1 9 cases and azing of all travel restrictions, the Company has wi d & strong recovery. Stanting lrom QT FY 2022-23, the Company
has wilnessed improved business performance in lenns of Averape Room Revenue (ARR) and Occupancy levels. ARR and Average Qccupancy levels in FY 2022-23 have reached TNR 8,286 and 75% in
Sheraton, Hyderabad property and INR. 4,386 and 87% in Four Points by Sheraton, Ahriedabad property respectively. Further, ARR and Average Occupancy levels in FY 2023-24 have reached INR. 9,043
and 69% in Sheraton, Hyderabad property. The Company has projecied significant increase in its cash flow from operations during the vears ending 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025, The Company has a
cash and bank balance of INE, 15475 milkon (excluding restricied bank deposits) and undrawn credit Facilities ole'R 313.07 mllllon as on 31 March 2023 which wall assist for meeting its short-tenm

liabilities for next 12 months, SAMHI Hotels Limited (the holding company) bas also undertaken to provide fi and pperational suppon o the Company ta settk its obligations s and when they fall
due

During the current year, the Company has also sold ons holel from its existing pontfolio (Four Points by Sheraton, Ahmedabad) and have reali
amount realised, INR 622 63 million has been used for debt reduciion

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has refinanced its high-cost bomowings from Piramal Enterprises Limited al an interest rale of 13%-14.05% pa with ICIC] Prodential Corporate Credit
Opportunities Fund {1CICH refinancing) at an interest mmte of 10.95% pa This re-fi : will belp in reducing the overaﬂ cost of borrotmngs for the Company, As per the fenns of the
Debenture trust deed dated 31 July 2023 with ICIC] Prudential Corp Credit Opp ities Fund, the holding company and i lts bsidi her referred 10 as “Ihe Group™) have to reduce the secured
borrowings by [NE 4,003 million on or before 31 Dacember 2023, The logn js socurcd by first charge on Property, Plant and Equipment and other assets of Sheraton hotel, Hyderabad, a property of the
Cornpany. Management of the holding company believes that the Group is nol likely 1o defaukt on this clause and therefore, no risk will arise on the operations of the Company

1 an amount of TNR 640 million against the sale Qut of the

In viewoflhe abaove, the management and the Board of Directars believe thal the Company will be able te meet all ils contracual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in near Future and
these financial have been prepared on a going basis

ngly,
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a. Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes ibutions, d ined as a specified percentape of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, Labour Weifare Fund and
Employees' State [nsurance, which are defined contribution plens. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged 10
profit or loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employess’ State Insurance for the year aggregated

to INR 7.84 (31 March 2022: INR. 5.80).

b. Compensated absences

The Prinzipal ptions used in d ining the comp absences benefit obligation are as given below:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %
Discounting rate 6.99/7.04 497
5.50 5.50

Future salary increase

¢. Defined Benelit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets 4 gratuity on departure at 15 days salary {last deawn salary) for

each completed year of service. The scheme iz not funded.

The following tables ise the o of net benefit expense recognised in profit or loss and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the said plan:
a) Expense recognised in Profit or Lass For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 21 March 2022
Particulars
Current service cost 0.52 0.61
[nterest cost 0.24 0.16
Expected rehnm on plan assets - -
Total exp recognised in fhe Siat t of profit and loss .76 0.77
b) R ts recognized directly in other comprehensive income
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net actuarial {gain)/loss recognized in the year
- changes in demographic assumptions - -
- changes in financial assumptions (0.08) {0.03)
- chanpes in expenience adjustments 0.38 {0.32)
Amount recognized in other prehensive i 1.30 {0.35)
¢} Change in present value of benefit obligation
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 3.55 3.58
Current service cost 0.52 .61
Interest cost 0.24 0.16
Actuarial lossf{gain) 0.39 (0.35}
Benefits paid (1.62) (0.45)
Disinvestment adfustment {0,7d) -
Presenl value of obligation as at the end of the year 2.25 3.55
d) A ts to be recognized in Bal sheet
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 225 3.55
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Net liabllity recognized in the Balance Sheet 2.25) (3.55)
Non-current 1.30 214
Cunrrent 0.95 1.41
&) The Principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefit obligation are as given below
As at As ar
Particalars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %
Discounting rate p.a. (i) 6.997.04 4.97
550 5.50

Salary growth rate p.a. (i)

(1} The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Govemmnant bonds st the accomting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities.
(1) The salary growih rate takes aceount of inflation, senjority, promotion and other relevant faciors on long 1erm basis.
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Demographic assumptions

Retirement Age (years)
Mortality Table

Withdrawal Rate
Ages

Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

for the next year is INR 0,53 (31 March 2022 INR. 0.67)

(f) The Company's best esti of exp

{iii) Sensitivity analysis

As at
31 March 2023

58
JALM {2012-2014)
ultimate table
%

70/66
TOH66
70766

As at
31 March 2022

58
TALM (2012-2014)
ultimate table
%%

64750
64/50
64450

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuartal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by

the amounts showa below,

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Increase * Decrease * Increase * Decrease *
Diseomt rate (0.5% movemnent) {0.02) (0.03) 0.03
0.02 0.03 (0.03)

Fuiure salary growth {0.5% movement)

Although the analysis does not ake account of the full distribuiion of cash flows expected under the plan, it doss provide zn approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

* Positive amount represents increase in provision
* Nepative amount represents decrease in provision

£) Maturity profile of defined benefit oblizari

Year

Apnl 2022- March 2023
April 2023 March 2024
April 2024- March 2025
Aprl 2025- March 2026
Apnl 2026- March 2027
April 2027- March 2028
Apnl 2028~ March 2029
Apnil 2028 onwards
April 2029 onwards

h) The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit abligation as at 31 March 2023 is 141 years (31 March 2022: 1.44 years}

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
. 1.41
0,95 1.03
0.57 .52
0.2% 0.26
016 013
0.08 0.06
.04 -
- .14
0.16 -
.15 355
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43 Lease disclosures

Operating Leases

Some leases of Lhe holels contains variable lease paymenis thal are based on revenue eamed by Lhe respective hotels in the company. Variable rental paymenis and estimated impact on rent of [% increase in
revenue are as follows:

Deedails of rent expenses
For year ended | Estimaied impaci for year ended | Estimated impact on
Parficulars 31 March 2023 on rent of 1% 31 March 2022 | rent ol 1% increase
increase in Revenue in Revenue
|Expenses relating to variable lease paymenis 1125 011 T4.06 0.4
Total read 11.25 0.11 14.06 0.14
following table p a malurity analysis of expected undi d cash Aows for lease labilities:
Particulars il e
31 March 20335 31 March 2022
-1 year .79 075
1-2 years 083 079
2-5 years 278 2.66
More than 5 years 2721 2517
Taotal Lease paymends 31.61 azq
The reconcilialion of lease liabilities is as follows:
Particulars Asat As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 9.40 912
Additions = =
Amount recognised 1o stalement of profit and loss as 1.03 1.00
INferes| £Xpense
Payment of lease liabilities (0.80) (0.72)
Closing bal. {Refer Note 17 and 23} 9,63 9,40

The leases entared by the Company are long term in nature and the underlying leased properties are being used as offices

As lessor

The Company has undertaken fil-outs work al s property located in Hyderabad and provided the same on finance lease o selected companies For a period of 5 years. These leases have been accounted for as
finance leases. Future minimum lease payments (MLP) under finance leases with the present value of the net MLP are as follows:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Minimum lease Present value of Minimum lease Present value of
payments MLP paymenis MLP
Mot later than one year F60 935 15.40 14.7¢
Later than one year and not later than five years - - 951 g7
Later than five years - - - -
Total minimem lease paymends 9,60 235 2501 2341
Less: Amounts representing uneamed finance income (0.25) - (1.60} L]
Present value of minimum bease payments 9.35 9.35 3.4 23.41
44 1 { property disclosures
() Invesiment property comprises a number of commercial flaors that are lezsed to third parties, Each of the leases contains an inibial non-cancellable period of 3 years. Sub Is are 1
with the lessee. The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property
(ii) Information regarding income and expenditure of | property
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rental and maintenance income derived from investment property 20 73,90
Less: Direct op P ing rental incorne (21.23) {28.60)
Profit arising from invesiment property before depreciation and indirect exp £4.79 4330
(i) The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of | property or the remi of income and proceeds of disposal.
(iv) Fair valus measuretnent:
The fair value of invesiment property was determined by an dited | regi t valuer as defined under Rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valoers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 The fair valve
of the in property has been calegorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used
The fair value of the invesiment property 15 31 March 2023: INR 924,30, 31 March 2022; INR £19.80
{v} ¥aluation lechnique:
The Company follows discounted cash lows 1echniqus. The valuation modzl iders \he present value of nel cash flows o be generaled from the property, laking into account the expected rental prowih

rale, vacant periods, I rale, lease i ive costs such as rent-free periods and other costs not paid by tenants, The expected net cash flows are di d using risk-ad, 1 di rakes.




SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad} Private Linited
Motes 1o the lnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{4} amonnts in Rupees Milffons, excepd for share deiails and unfess othenvise mated)

45 Recent Proncuncemenis issued bl oot yet elfeclive

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") nonifies new dard or di to the existi dards under Companies {[ndian A ing Standards) Rules as issued from time to lime On 31 March
2023, MCA ded the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) A d Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 April 2023, as below:
Ind AS1-P ion of Fia ial § This di quires Lhe enlities te disclose their material accounting policies rather than their sigmilff ing policies. The effective dare
for adoption of this amendment is annus] periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 The Company has evaluated the d and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the Company's
financial statements
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Polickes, Chamges in Accomnting Eslimates and Errors: Thig ] has introduced a definition of - ing esli * and inchoded d to Ind AS & to help
enlibes distinguish changes in ing policies from changes in ac ing esti The effective date for adop of thig d is annual periods beginning on or afier 1 April 2023 The
Company has evalualed the 4 and there is no impaci on iis financial statements
Tnd AS 12 - locome Taxes: This amendment has narrowed the scope of the iniitial recognilion exemption so that it does not apply (o transactions that give rise (o equal and offsefting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after | April 2023, The Company has evaluzied the d and there is no impact on its financial
stalaments
46 Rateo Analysis and ils elemenis
Ratio in times/% Nemeraior Demominalor 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022 %4 change
{a) Current Ratio in times Current Assets Cuerenl Liabilities 029 0,40 <28 26%
(b} Drebt-Equity Ratio in Limes Total Borrowings Total equiry (2.535) (4.23) ~32.69%
(¢} Debt Service Coverage Ratio 10 1tmes Profiv {Loss} before finance cost, Finance costs paid + Principal repaymenits 028 022 24.56%
deprecialion and isehion and tax  [of long lerm borrowings
{d) Return on Equity Rabe in % Loss for the year Average Toal equity 4.50% B1.14% -34.43%
(e} Lnveniory lurncver ratio n times Cost of material consurned Average [nventory NA NA MA
() Trade Receivables tumover ratio m hmes Revenue from operations Average Trade Raceivables 1333 11.0% 20129%
() Trade payables turnover ratio " himes Cost of materials consumed + Other Average Trade Payables 314 194 62.72%
[expenses
[h} Met capita) wrnover ratio in times Revenue Irom operations Average working capiial {1.78) {1.47) 20908
(i} Net prefit rane in% Laoss for the ysar Revenue from operaliong =% 754y -7 46%, -%6.15%
() Return on Capita? employed in % Loss before finance cosis and taxes Tangible Net Wonh + Toul Borowings 16.32% -1.05% -1697.72%
(k) Return on irvestment in % {Interest (Finance Income) |Investment HA A A

* includes amount related 1o discontinued operalions (refer note 50}

Explanations to vartance in Ratios:

Current Ratio |Lower dus 10 increase in interest acerued on borrowings

Debt-Equity Ratio |Lower due 1o decrease in borrowinzs

Return on Equity Ratio Beturn on equity ratic has improved due 1o decreass in Toss 45 compared 1o previous year

Trade payables wmover ratio Increased due 1o i in business activity during the year

Net profi ratio I d due 1o imp in busi activity during the year

Retum on Capilal emploved Retum on capilal employed imp d due t0 1mp in operating marging during the vear.

The Company has not p d the following ratios due to the reasons given below:

{a) Inventory wrnover ratic: since the value of the inventory is insignificant as compared to the total assets.

{b) Retum on i since the Company invests surplus temporary funds in short term bank deposits and the income generated is insigrificant to wial wmover

47 Other statmtory iwformation
{i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any py ding has been initiated or pending apainsi the Company for holding any Benami property

(ii) The Company does not have any transaclions with companies struck off,

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be regi d with Kegi of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period

{iv) The Company has not eaded or invesied in Crypio currency or Wirtual Curcency during the financial year

{¥) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entityties), mcluding foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the und ding thar the diary shall:
(a) direcily or indirecily lend ar invest in other persong ar entiies identified in any manner whalscever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) o
(b) provide any guaranlee, security of the like to or on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries

{vi} The Company has not received any fund from any personis} or entity(ies), ncluding foreign entities (Fundiog Party) with the und ding {whether ded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shali:

(a) directly or tndirecily lend or invest in other persons or entities identifisd in any manner wharsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pany (Uhimats Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any znarantee, security of the like on behalf of the Dltimate Beneliciaries
{vii) The Company does nol have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been sumendered of disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 196) (such as, search or survey or any other relevant pravisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has not granted any Ioans or advances in the nature of loans Lo promoters, direciors, KIMPs and the relaied parties {as defined under Companies Act, 2013} either severally or jointly
with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or pericd of repayment

{i2) The Company has used the borrawings from bank and financial instituiion For the specific purpose For which it was 1aken,

(x) The Company has not been declared willul defaulier by any bank or fi ial institution or g ar any govarnment authority

{xi) The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed the Companies Acl, 2013
(xii) The Company has not enlered into any scherme of arrangement which has an accounling impacl on current or previous financial year

(xiii) The Company has not lued its property, plant and equip (including right of use assels) or intanpible assets or both during the current or pravious

{xiv) The Company is nel required w0 submir quanterly relurmns or statements with banks during the current or previous year
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48 List of imm ovable property nod held in the name of the Company

As at 31 March 2022

Property, plant and equipment - Freehold
Land of Town Planning Scheme No 3/5
{varied) of Ahmedabad, Siwated at
Moupe Chhadavad, Taluka City,
District Ahmedabad

Ltd.

Whether ritle deed
holder is a
ine item i the Bal o . promoter,director.d Property held . ,
Belevant line itew in Rlance Description of property Gross carrying irecior or relative if| Held in the name of | since which Reasen for nof being held in the name
Sheet value of the company
promoleridirector date
or employee of
promoter/director
Sub Plol Mo.4 of Final Plot No. 578 275.00 Ne Satkar Realties Pyt |27 March 20056 |The sale deed of land is in the name of]

Balkar Reallies Pvi. L1d, erstwhile name|
of the Company which was changed 1|
Royal Orchid Ahmedabad Private|
Limited and after that SAMHI Hotels
(Ahmedabad} Private Limited

Fresh  cedificate  of  incorporation
consequent to change of name dated 14
May 2010 and 16 August 2012
respecitvely was issued by the Registrar|
of Companies, Mational Capilal Temitory
of Gujarat

The abave property has been sold duning the year ended 31 March 2023

49 During the year, SAMHI Holels Limited {the Helding Company) has all.

50 Discontinued Operstions

ting INR 31 58 (3) March 2022 - INR 21 47} as Company's share of project expenses and other cost incurred

During the current year, the Company entered into an business wransfer agreement ("BTA™) with Creenpark Hotels and Resons Limited (“Greenpark™ For sale of its business at Four Poims by Sheraton,
Abmedabad {including assels, contracts, employees, hotel building and liabilities), as a going concern on a slump sale basis as per the terms and conditions set forth in BTA, The conveyance deed was

execuled on 02 February 2023

ds Jon in

4 with [nd AS 105 “Non-Current Assets Held for $ale and Discontinved Operatians™,

Accordingly, the operation of the smd b has been disclosed as di

from operations

The Statement of Profil and Loss has been represented 1o show the disce

Statemend of Profil and Loss of discom(inued operations

I
¥ ¥ ¥

Particulars For the year | For the year emded
ended 31 March 31 March 2022
2023
Income
Revenue from operations 15773 103,32
Other sncome 3.50 -
Total income 161.23 103.32
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 11.97 §.82
Employee beneiits expense 28.19 2501
Other expenges 77139 5555
117.55 $9.38
Earmings from disconlinued operations before i cost, depreciation and amoriisation, exceptionsl ilems and tax 43.68 13.94
Finance costs 6721 6231
Depreciation and isati p 14 64 1665
81,85 $5.96
Loss from discontinned operations before exceplional items and tax {38.17)} (72.02)
Exceptional items® 20248 -
Profit/ (loss} from disc d operations before tax 171.31 {72.02)

eR]

and other i

assels

* Exceplicnal ems include gain on disposal of property, plav and

other intangible assets amounting to {NR, 87.47

ting 1o INR, 122.01 and reversal of impaiment losses of property, plant and equipment and
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Net cashflows incurred from discontinued operations is as follows

For the year
Particulars ended 31 Mareh | P01 the year ended
31 March 2022
023
Cash flow from QOperating activilies 0.23 21407
Cash Now from Investing achivities 63395 Py
Cash Mlow (used in) from Financing activities (659 59) 2551
51 As per the MC A Notiflicalion daled August 06, 2022, the Ceniral Govemnment has nolified the Comy (A 15) Fourth A d Rules, 2022 Az per the ded rules, the Company is ired 10

maintain 2 backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electrome mode that should be accessible in India at all times. Also, the Company is required 1o creale backup of accounts

on servers physically localed in [ndfa on a daily baziz

The books of account along wilh other relevant records and papers of the Company 3¢ maintained in el ic mode, across all hotels. These are readily accessible in India at 21l brnes and curently 2 backup

is maintained on 2 cloud based / physical server Such servers are located i India, with the exception of certain sofiwares/ applications, for which (he servars are located overseas. The Company is in the
process of complyini wilh hese requi F to the d

52 Events occurring after the Balance Sheel date:
The Company has refinanced its high-cost borrowings from Piramal Enterprizes Limitedi@ 13% pa. - 14.05% pa. with ICIC] Prudential Corporale Credil Opportunities Fund(@ 10 95% p a which will help
in reducing the overall cost of borrowing for the Company, As per the terms of the loan agreement, the Group has to reduce ils secured borowings by Rs, 4,000 million on or before 31 December 2023 The
loan is secured by first charge on Propeny, Plant and Equipment and other assetz of Sheraton hotel, Hyderabad

53 Impairment of asset

Tmipaiemeny festing for cash-gencrating Rnits

In accordance wath Ind A5 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the Company had identified individual hotels isting of property, plant and equir and intangible assels} as 4 separale cash penerating unit for
the purpose of impar review. Manag; peniodically assesses whether there is an indication that an assel may be bmpaired using a comparison b carrying valye of assets in books and the
recoverable value. Recoverable value is considered as higher of fair value less costs of disposal and valus in use

Recoverable amounl is value in use of the hotel and is based on discounted cash flow method which was classified as 2 level 3 fair value in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of one oF more
unobservable inputs, There has been no change in the valuation 1echnique as compared ko previous years

Based on the resulis of impairment testing for the batels, the writien down value of below hotel as at 31 March 2020 had been reduced to able valges as ioned below,
Asvet Carrying value |Recoverable value |Impairment loss
Four Poinis by Sherston - Abmedabad, City Center 58825 472 45 115 80
588.25 472,45 11550
During the year, the Comapny has sold off Four Points by Sheraton, Ahmedabad and realized a sales won of INR 62208 A dingly, as at 30 September 2022, the Company has d the

carmying value of the asset and reversed (he impeimment loss of INR 87 47 (net of depreciation) recorded in books in earlier years The same has been recorded as gain on reverss) of impairment under the
head ‘exceptional item” in the current period. The recoverable amount is delermined on the basis of Business Transfer Ag ("BTA") eniered with unretated party for selling the property (Jevel 2 fair

value hierarchy)
[mpairment loss recognised in books in respect 1o the cartying vatus of Property, Plant and Equipments and Other Iniangible Assels is as follows:

st Impairment loss recognized in | Reversal of Impairment loss dwring the
carlier years venr ended 31 March 2023

Four Points by Sheraton - Ahmedabad, 11530 87.47

City Center

ded in the financial

During the current year, based on the impairment analysis carmried oul by the no further impai lass is required to bs
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The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below,

Assum ptions
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate Pre tax / Post Tax 1234% 7 12.15%  12.22%/11.70%
Average Room Revenue (ARR) growih rate 7% to 9% 8% to 14%
Terminal Value meltiple 14 times 14 times
Oecupancy rate 7% 6% - T8%

Based on the impairment testing performed, the management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the recovecable amount 10 be lower
than carrying amount of the CGUL

As per our report of even date anached
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